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Happy Valley Union ESD

Administrative Regulation

AR 1312.1
Community Relations

Complaints Concerning District Employees

The Superintendent or designee shall determine whether a complaint should be considered a
complaint against the district and/or an individual employee, and whether it should be resolved by
the district's process for complaints concerning personnel and/or other district procedures.

(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 4144/4244/4344 - Complaints)

To promote prompt and fair resolution of the complaint, the following procedures shall govern the
resolution of complaints against district employees:

1. Every effort should be made to resolve a complaint at the earliest possible stage. Whenever
possible, the complainant should communicate directly to the employee in order to resolve concerns.

2. If a complainant is unable or unwilling to resolve the complaint directly with the employee,
he/she may submit an oral or written complaint to the employee’s immediate supervisor or the
principal.

3. All complaints related to district personnel other than administrators shall be submitted in writing
to the principal or immediate supervisor. If the complainant is unable to prepare the complaint in
writing, administrative staff shall help him/her to do so. Complaints related to a principal or central
office administrator shall be initially filed in writing with the Superintendent or designee.
Complaints related to the Superintendent shall be initially filed in writing with the Board.

4. When a written complaint is received, the employee shall be notified within five days or in
accordance with collective bargaining agreements.

5. A written complaint shall include:
a. The full name of each employee involved
b. A brief but specific summary of the complaint and the facts surrounding it

c. A specific description of any prior attempt to discuss the complaint with the employee and the
failure to resolve the matter

6. Staff responsible for investigating complaints shall attempt to resolve the complaint to the
satisfaction of the parties involved within 30 days.
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7. Both the complainant and the employee against whom the complaint was made may appeal a
decision by the principal or immediate supervisor to the Superintendent or designee, who shall
attempt to resolve the complaint to the satisfaction of the person involved within 30 days. Parties
should consider and accept the Superintendent or designee's decision as final. However, the
complainant, the employee, or the Superintendent or designee may ask to address the Board
regarding the complaint.

8. Before any Board consideration of a complaint, the Superintendent or designee shall submit to
the Board a written report concerning the complaint, including but not limited to:

a. The full name of each employee involved

b. A brief but specific summary of the complaint and the facts surrounding it, sufficient to inform
the Board and the parties as to the precise nature of the complaint and to allow the parties to prepare
a response

c. A copy of the signed original complaint

d. A summary of the action taken by the Superintendent or designee, together with his/her specific
finding that the problem has not been resolved and the reasons

10. All parties to a complaint may be asked to attend a Board meeting in order to clarify the issue
and present all available evidence.

11. A closed session may be held to hear the complaint in accordance with law.

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

12. The decision of the Board shall be final.

Any complaint of child abuse or neglect alleged against a district employee shall be reported to the
appropriate local agencies in accordance with law, Board policy and administrative regulation.

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)

Regulation HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
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Happy Valley Union ESD

Administrative Regulation

AR 1312.2
Community Relations

Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials

Step 1: Informal Complaint

If a staff member, district resident, or parent/guardian of a student enrolled in a district school has a
complaint regarding the content or use of any specific instructional material, he/she shall informally
discuss the material in question with the principal.

Step 2: Formal Complaint

If the complainant is not satisfied with the principal’s initial response, he/she shall present a written
complaint to the principal. Complaints regarding printed material shall name the author, title, and
publisher and shall identify the objection by page and item numbers. In the case of nonprinted
material, written information specifying the precise nature of the objection shall be given.
Complainants shall sign all complaints and provide identifying information so that the district is able
to make a proper reply. Anonymous complaints will not be accepted.

Upon receiving a complaint, the principal shall acknowledge its receipt and answer any questions
regarding procedure. The principal then shall notify the Superintendent or designee and the
teacher(s) involved of the complaint.

During the investigation of the complaint, the challenged material may remain in use until a final
decision has been reached. However, upon request of the parent/guardian who has filed the
complaint, his/her child may be excused from using challenged materials until a resolution has been
reached. The teacher shall assign the student an alternate material of equal merit.

Step 3: Superintendent Determination

The Superintendent or designee shall determine whether a review committee should be convened to
review the complaint.

If the Superintendent or designee determines that a review committee is not necessary, he/she shall
issue a decision regarding the complaint.

Step 4: Review Committee

If the Superintendent or designee determines that a review committee is necessary, he/she shall
appoint a committee composed of administrators and staff members selected from relevant
instructional and administrative areas. The Superintendent or designee may also appoint community
members to serve on the committee.
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The review committee shall review the criteria specified in Board policy and shall determine the
extent to which the challenged material supports the curriculum, the educational appropriateness of
the material, and its suitability for the age level of the student.

Within 30 days of being convened, the review committee shall summarize its findings in a written
report. The Superintendent or designee shall notify the complainant of the committee’s decision
within 15 days of receiving the committee’s report.

Step 5: Appeal to the Governing Board

If the complainant remains unsatisfied, he/she may appeal the Superintendent’s or the review
committee’s decision to the Board. The Board’s decision shall be final.

(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

Regulation HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: August 21, 2007 Anderson, California
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Happy Valley Union ESD i
Administrative Regulation i

AR 3513.3 0

Business and Noninstructional Operations !
Tobacco-Free Schools i
Notifications i
Information about the district's tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures shall be .
communicated clearly to employees, parents/guardians, students and the community. (Health and !
Safety Code 104420)
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) !
Signs stating "Tobacco use is prohibited"” shall be prominently displayed at all entrances to school !
property. (Health and Safety Code 104420) .
Enforcement/Discipline
Any employee or student who violates the district's tobacco-free schools policy shall be asked to !
refrain from smoking and shall be subject to disciplinary action as appropriate. i
(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) .
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) !
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) i
Any other person who violates the district's policy on tobacco-free schools shall be informed of the .
district's policy and asked to refrain from smoking. If the person fails to comply with this request, !
the Superintendent or designee may: .
1. Direct the person to leave school property !
2. Request local law enforcement assistance in removing the person from school premises !
3. If the person repeatedly violates the tobacco-free schools policy, prohibit him/her from entering !
district property for a specified period of time .
(cf. 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders) !
(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions) i
Regulation HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT o
approved: August 21, 2007 Anderson, California !
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Happy Valley Union ESD
Board Policy

BP 4020
Personnel

Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

The Governing Board believes that the maintenance of drug- and alcohol-free workplaces is
essential to school and district operations.

No employee shall unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess, use or be under the
influence of any alcoholic beverage, drug or controlled substance as defined in 21 USC 81 at any
school district workplace. These prohibitions apply before, during and after school hours. A school
district workplace is any place where school district work is performed, any school-owned or school-
approved vehicle used to transport students to and from school or school activities; any off-school
sites when accommodating a school-sponsored or school-approved activity or function where
students are under district jurisdiction; or during any period of time when an employee is supervising
students on behalf of the district or otherwise engaged in district business.

(cf. 4112.41/4212.41/4312.41 - Employee Drug Testing)
(cf. 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42 - Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus Drivers)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify employees of these prohibitions. (Government Code
8355; 41 USC 702)

An employee shall abide by the terms of this policy and notify the district, within five days, of any
criminal drug or alcohol statute conviction which he/she receives for a violation occurring in the
workplace. (41 USC 702)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify the appropriate federal granting or contracting agencies
within 10 days after receiving notification, from an employee or otherwise, of any conviction for a
violation occurring in the workplace. (41 USC 701)

The Board may not employ or retain in employment persons convicted of a controlled substance
offense as defined in Education Code 44011. If any such conviction is reversed and the person
acquitted in a new trial or the charges dismissed, his/her employment is no longer prohibited. A
plea or verdict of guilty, a finding of guilt by a court in a trial without a jury, or a conviction
following a plea of nolo contendere shall be deemed to be a conviction. (Education Code 44836,
45123)

(cf. 4112 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment)
(cf. 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment)

A classified employee may be reemployed after conviction of such an offense if the Board
determines, from the evidence presented, that the person has been rehabilitated for at least five years.
(Education Code 45123)
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The Board may take appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination, or require the
employee to satisfactorily participate in and complete a drug assistance or rehabilitation program
approved by a federal, state or local health, law enforcement or other appropriate agency.

(cf. 4117.4 - Dismissal)
(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a drug- and alcohol-free awareness program to inform
employees about: (Government Code 8355)

1. The dangers of drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace

2. The district policy of maintaining drug- and alcohol-free workplaces

3. Any available drug and alcohol counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs
(cf. 4159/4259/4359 - Employee Assistance Programs)

4. The penalties that may be imposed on employees for drug and alcohol abuse violations

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

44011 Controlled substance offense

44425 Conviction of controlled substance offenses as grounds for revocation of credential
44836 Employment of certificated persons convicted of controlled substance offenses
44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

44940.5 Procedures when employees are placed on compulsory leave of absence
45123 Employment after conviction of controlled substance offense

45304 Compulsory leave of absence for classified persons

GOVERNMENT CODE

8350-8357 Drug-free workplace

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

7111-7117 Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities Act

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 21

812 Schedule of controlled substances

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 41

701-707 Drug-Free Workplace Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 21

1308.01-1308.49 Schedule of controlled substances

Policy HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: August 21, 2007 Anderson, California
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Happy Valley Union ESD

Administrative Regulation

AR 4030
Personnel

Nondiscrimination In Employment

Unlawful discrimination or harassment of an individual includes:

1. Slurs, epithets, threats or verbal abuse

2. Derogatory or degrading comments, descriptions, drawings, pictures or gestures
3. Unwelcome jokes, stories, teasing or taunting

4. Any other verbal, written, visual or physical conduct against the individual which:
a. Adversely affects his/her employment opportunities, or

b. Has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with his/her work performance or creating
an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment

Any employee or job applicant who feels that he/she has been or is being unlawfully discriminated
against or harassed should immediately contact his/her supervisor, the nondiscrimination coordinator
or the Superintendent in order to obtain procedures for reporting a complaint. Such complaints shall
be filed in accordance with AR 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment. An
employee may bypass his/her supervisor when the supervisor is the alleged offender.

(cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment)
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment)

Any supervisor who receives a discrimination/harassment complaint shall immediately notify the
nondiscrimination coordinator or the Superintendent, who shall ensure that the complaint is
appropriately investigated in accordance with district policy and regulations.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that annual training is provided to all employees
regarding the issues of discrimination.

Regulation HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: August 21, 2007 Anderson, California
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Happy Valley Union ESD

Administrative Regulation
AR 4040
Personnel

Employee Use Of Technology
On-Line/Internet Services: User Obligations and Responsibilities

Employees are authorized to use district equipment to access the Internet or on-line services in
accordance with Governing Board policy and the user obligations and responsibilities specified
below.

1. The employee in whose name an on-line services account is issued is responsible for its proper
use at all times. Employees shall keep account information, home addresses and telephone numbers
private. They shall use the system only under their own account number.

2. Employees shall use the system responsibly and primarily for work-related purposes.
(cf. 6162.7 - Use of Technology in Instruction)

is threatening, obscene, disruptive or sexually explicit, or that could be construed as harassment or
disparagement of others based on their race/ethnicity, national origin, gender, sexual orientation,
age, disability, religion or political beliefs.

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)
(cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment)
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment)

4. Employees shall not use the system to promote unethical practices or any activity prohibited by
law, Board policy or administrative regulations.

5. Copyrighted material shall not be placed on the system without the author's permission.
Employees may download copyrighted material only in accordance with applicable copyright laws.

(cf. 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials)

6. Employees shall not intentionally upload, download or create computer viruses and/or
maliciously attempt to harm or destroy district equipment or materials or the data of any other user,
including so-called "hacking."

7. Employees shall not read other users' electronic mail or files. They shall not attempt to interfere
with other users' ability to send or receive electronic mail, nor shall they attempt to read, delete,
copy, modify or forge other users' mail.

8. Users shall report any security problem or misuse of the services to the Superintendent or designee.
(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology)
Regulation HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
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Happy Valley Union ESD

Administrative Regulation
AR 4119.11
Personnel

Sexual Harassment

Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, unwanted
requests for sexual favors, or other unwanted verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature
made against another person of the same or opposite sex in the work or educational setting when:
(Education Code 212.5; 5 CCR 4916)

1. Submission to the conduct is made expressly or implicitly a term or condition of the individual's
employment

2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by the individual is used as the basis for an
employment decision affecting him/her

3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with the other individual's work
performance; creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment; or adversely affecting
the other individual's evaluation, advancement, assigned duties, or any other condition of
employment or career development

4. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the other individual is used as the basis for any
decision affecting him/her regarding benefits, services, honors, programs, or activities available at or
through the district

Other examples of actions that might constitute sexual harassment, whether committed by a
supervisor, a co-worker, or a non-employee, in the work or educational setting, include, but are not
limited to:

1. Unwelcome verbal conduct such as sexual flirtations or propositions; graphic comments about an
individual's body; overly personal conversations or pressure for sexual activity; sexual jokes or
stories; unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, innuendoes, derogatory comments, sexually
degrading descriptions, or the spreading of sexual rumors

2. Unwelcome visual conduct such as drawings, pictures, graffiti, or gestures; sexually explicit e-
mails; displaying sexually suggestive objects

3. Unwelcome physical conduct such as massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking or brushing the
body; touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way; cornering, blocking, leaning over, or
impeding normal movements

Prohibited sexual harassment may also include any act of retaliation against an individual who
reports a violation of the district's sexual harassment policy or who participates in the investigation
of a sexual harassment complaint.
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Training

By January 1, 2006, and every two years thereafter, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that
supervisory employees receive at least two hours of classroom or other effective interactive training
and education regarding sexual harassment. All newly hired or promoted supervisory employees
shall receive training within six months of their assumption of the supervisory position.
(Government Code 12950.1)

The district’s training and education program for supervisory employees shall include information
and practical guidance regarding the federal and state statutory law on the prohibition against and the
prevention and correction of sexual harassment and the remedies available to the victims of sexual
harassment in employment. The training shall also include practical examples aimed at instructing
supervisors in the prevention of harassment, discrimination, and retaliation. (Government Code
12950.1)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all employees receive periodic training
regarding the district's sexual harassment policy, particularly the procedures for filing complaints
and employees' duty to use the district's complaint procedures.

Notifications

A copy of the Board policy and this administrative regulation shall: (Education Code 231.5)

1. Be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building or other area of the
school where notices of district rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct are posted

2. Be provided to each faculty member, all members of the administrative staff, and all members of
the support staff at the beginning of the first quarter or semester of the school year or whenever a
new employee is hired

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

3. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school's or district's comprehensive
rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct

All employees shall receive either a copy of information sheets prepared by the California
Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) or a copy of district information sheets that
contain, at a minimum, components on: (Government Code 12950)

1. The illegality of sexual harassment

2. The definition of sexual harassment under applicable state and federal law

3. A description of sexual harassment, with examples

4. The district's complaint process available to the employee

(cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment)
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5. The legal remedies and complaint process available through DFEH and the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission (EEOC)

6. Directions on how to contact DFEH and the EEOC

7. The protection against retaliation provided by 2 CCR 7287.8 for opposing harassment prohibited

by law or for filing a complaint with or otherwise participating in an investigation, proceeding, or

hearing conducted by DFEH and the EEOC

Regulation HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: August 21, 2007 Anderson, California
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Happy Valley Union ESD i
Board Policy i
BP 4119.41 o
Personnel !
Employees With Infectious Disease i
The Governing Board encourages each employee to inform the district as soon as possible if he/she !
contracts an infectious disease which creates a physical or mental disability. The Board will .
reasonably accommodate the needs of such individuals. !
The Board may reassign or grant disability leave to an employee who is unable to perform his/her i
job responsibilities because of illness or because the employee's illness significantly endangers
his/her health or safety or the health or safety of others. i
(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) .
(cf. 4261.1 - Personal IlIness/Injury Leave) !
No employee will be discriminated against because of his/her disability. Legal protections i
established for disabled persons extend to individuals significantly impaired by infectious diseases.
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) !
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) .
(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations) !
When informed that an employee has a disabling infectious disease, the Superintendent or designee i
may request that the employee sign a release form to provide confidential medical information and
records. i
In determining a reasonable accommodation of the employee's condition, the Superintendent or .
designee may consult with public health officials or physicians with expertise in the diagnosis and !
treatment of infectious disease. The Superintendent or designee may also communicate with the
employee's physician regarding the employee’s ability to perform the essential requirements of the i
job with reasonable accommodation and without posing significant health or safety risks to the
employee or others. i
The Superintendent or designee shall prepare a confidential report which includes his/her .
recommendation and the medical information upon which it is based. These recommendations shall !
take into consideration:
1. The nature of the disease and the probability of its being transmitted, including the duration and !
severity of the risk i
2. The physical condition of the employee, including diagnosis, treatment, and prognosis of the .
condition !
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3. The actual requirements of the employee's job and the expected type of interaction with others in !
the school setting .
This report shall be forwarded to the Board for confidential review and action. !
The job assignment of an employee with a disabling infectious disease shall be reevaluated !
whenever there is a change in medical knowledge or in the employee's medical regimen or health .
which might affect his/her assignment. !
Confidentiality i
The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employee rights to confidentiality i
are strictly observed. The district shall disclose medical record information only to the extent
required or permitted by law. The medical records of any employee with a disabling infectious .
disease shall be held in strict confidence. !
Legal Reference: !
CIVIL CODE 3
56-56.37 Confidentiality of medical information !
GOVERNMENT CODE o
12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act !
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE .
120975-121020 Mandated blood testing and confidentiality to protect public health !
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2
7293.5 et seq. 2
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 !
701 et seq. Rehabilitation Act .
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 !
12101-12213 Americans With Disabilities Act
COURT DECISIONS i
School Board of Nassau County, Fla. v. Arline, 408 U.S. 273 (1987)

Policy HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT !
adopted: August 21, 2007 Anderson, California
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Happy Valley Union ESD

Administrative Regulation

AR 4119.42
Personnel

Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens

Definitions

Occupational exposure means reasonably anticipated skin, eye, mucous membrane, or parenteral
contact with blood or other potentially infectious materials that may result from the performance of
an employee's duties. (8 CCR 5193(b))

Exposure incident means a specific eye, mouth, other mucous membrane, nonintact skin, or
parenteral contact with blood or other potentially infectious materials that result from the
performance of an employee's duties. (8 CCR 5193 (b))

Parenteral contact means piercing mucous membranes or the skin barrier through such events as

mﬂ
'
'
'
'
'
'
J
'
'
needlesticks, human bites, cuts, and abrasions. (8 CCR 5193(b)) i
J
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
J

A sharp is any object that can be reasonably anticipated to penetrate the skin or any other part of the
body and to result in an exposure incident. (8 CCR 5193(b))

A sharps injury is any injury caused by a sharp, including but not limited to cuts, abrasions or
needlesticks. (8 CCR 5193(b))

Work practice controls are controls that reduce the likelihood of exposure by defining the manner in
which a task is performed. (8 CCR 5193(b))

Engineering controls are controls, such as sharps disposal containers, needleless systems, and sharps
with engineered sharps injury protection, that isolate or remove the bloodborne pathogens hazard
from the workplace. (8 CCR 5193(b))

Engineered sharps injury protection is a physical attribute built into a needle device or into a non-
needle sharp which effectively reduces the risk of an exposure incident. (8 CCR 5193(b))

Exposure Control Plan

The district's exposure control plan shall contain at least the following components: (8 CCR
5193(c))

1. A determination of which employees have occupational exposure to blood or other potentially
infectious materials

The district's exposure determination shall be made without regard to the use of personal protective
equipment and shall include a list of:
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a. All job classifications in which all employees have occupational exposure
b. Job classifications in which some employees have occupational exposure

c. All tasks and procedures, or groups of closely related tasks and procedures, in which occupational
exposure occurs and which are performed by employees listed in item #b above

2. The schedule and method of implementing:

a. Methods of compliance required by 8 CCR 5193(d), such as universal precautions, general and
specific engineering and work practice controls, and personal protective equipment

(cf. 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions)

b. Hepatitis B vaccination

c. Bloodborne pathogen post-exposure evaluation and follow-up

d. Communication of hazards to employees, including labels, signs, information and training
e. Recordkeeping

3. The district's procedure for evaluating circumstances surrounding exposure incidents

4. An effective procedure for gathering information about each exposure incident involving a sharp,
as required for the log of sharps injuries

5. An effective procedure for periodically determining the frequency of use of the types and brands
of sharps involved in exposure incidents documented in the sharps injury log

6. An effective procedure for identifying currently available engineering controls and selecting such
controls as appropriate for the procedures performed by employees in their work areas or
departments

7. An effective procedure for documenting instances when a licensed healthcare professional
directly involved in a patient's care determines, in the reasonable exercise of clinical judgment, that
the use of an engineering control would jeopardize an individual's safety or the success of a medical,
dental or nursing procedure involving the individual

8. An effective procedure for obtaining the active involvement of employees in reviewing and
updating the exposure control plan with respect to the procedures performed by employees in their
respective work areas or departments

The exposure control plan shall be reviewed and updated at least annually and whenever necessary
to: (8 CCR 5193(c))

1. Reflect new or modified tasks and procedures affecting occupational exposure

2. To the extent that sharps are used in the district, reflect progress in implementing the use of
needleless systems and sharps with engineered sharps injury protection
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3. Include new or revised employee positions with occupational exposure
4. Review and evaluate the exposure incidents which occurred since the previous update

5. Review and respond to information indicating that the exposure control plan is deficient in any
area

The district's exposure control plan shall be accessible to employees upon request. (8 CCR 3204(e))
Preventive Measures

The Superintendent or designee shall use engineering and work practice controls to eliminate or
minimize employee exposure, and shall regularly examine and update controls to ensure their
effectiveness. (8 CCR 5193(d))

Hepatitis B Vaccination
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The hepatitis B vaccination and vaccination series shall be made available at no cost to all !
employees who have occupational exposure. The hepatitis B vaccination shall be made available =
after an employee with occupational exposure has received the required training and within 10 !
working days of initial assignment, unless the employee has previously received the complete .
hepatitis B vaccination series, or antibody testing has revealed that the employee is immune, or !
vaccination is contraindicated by medical reasons. (8 CCR 5193(f)) .
.
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.

.

Employees who decline to accept the vaccination shall sign the hepatitis B declination statement. (8
CCR 5193(f))

The Superintendent or designee may exempt designated first aid providers from the pre-exposure
hepatitis B vaccine in accordance with 8 CCR 5193 (f).

Information and Training

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all employees with occupational exposure
participate in a training program containing the elements required by state regulations, during
working hours and at no cost to the employee. This program shall be offered at the time of initial
assignment to tasks where occupational exposure may take place, at least annually thereafter, and
whenever a change of tasks or procedures affects the employee's exposure. (8 CCR 5193(g))

Designated first aid providers shall receive training that includes the specifics of reporting first-aid
incidents which involve blood or body fluids which are potentially infectious. (8 CCR 5193(g))

Reporting Incidents

All exposure incidents shall be reported as soon as possible to the Superintendent or designee.
Unvaccinated designated first aid providers must report any first aid incident involving the presence
of blood or other potentially infectious material, regardless of whether an exposure incident

occurred, by the end of the work shift. The full hepatitis B vaccination series shall be made available
to such employees no later than 24 hours after the first aid incident. (8 CCR 5193(f))
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Sharps Injury Log

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a log recording each exposure incident
involving a sharp. The exposure incident shall be recorded within 14 working days of the date the
incident is reported to the district. (8 CCR 5193(c))

The information recorded shall include the following, if known or reasonably available: (8 CCR
5193(c))

1. Date and time of the exposure incident

2. Type and brand of sharp involved in the exposure incident

3. A description of the exposure incident, including:

a. Job classification of the exposed employee

b. Department or work area where the exposure incident occurred

c. The procedure that the exposed employee was performing at the time of the incident

e. The body part involved in the incident

f. If the sharp had engineered sharps injury protection, whether the protective mechanism was
activated and whether the injury occurred before, during or after the protective mechanism was
activated

g. If the sharp had no engineered sharps injury protection, the injured employee's opinion as to
whether and how such a mechanism could have prevented the injury

h. The employee's opinion about whether any other engineering, administrative or work practice
could have prevented the injury

Post-Exposure Evaluation and Follow-up

Following a report of an exposure incident, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately make
available to the exposed employee, at no cost, a confidential medical evaluation, post-exposure
evaluation and follow-up. The Superintendent or designee shall, at a minimum: (8 CCR 5193())

1. Document the route(s) of exposure and the circumstances under which the exposure incident
occurred

2. ldentify and document the source individual, unless that identification is infeasible or prohibited
by law

3. Provide for the collection and testing of the employee's blood for hepatitis B, hepatitis C and HIV
serological status

-
'
'
'
'
'
'
J
'
'

d. How the incident occurred i
J
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
'
J
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4. Provide for post-exposure prophylaxis, when medically indicated, as recommended by the U.S.
Public Health Service

5. Provide for counseling and evaluation of reported illnesses

The Superintendent or designee shall provide the health care professional with a copy of 8 CCR
5193; a description of the employee's duties as they relate to the exposure incident; documentation of
the route(s) of exposure and circumstances under which exposure occurred; results of the source
individual's blood testing, if available; and all medical records maintained by the district relevant to
the appropriate treatment of the employee, including vaccination status. (8 CCR 5193(f))

The district shall maintain the confidentiality of the affected employee and the exposure source
during all phases of the post-exposure evaluation. (8 CCR 5193(f))

(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)

Records !
Upon an employee's initial employment and at least annually thereafter, the Superintendent or !
designee shall inform employees with occupational exposure of the existence, location and o
availability of related records; the person responsible for maintaining and providing access to !
records; and the employee's right of access to these records. (8 CCR 3204) .

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Medical records for each employee with occupational exposure shall be kept confidential and not
disclosed or reported without the employee's written consent to any person within or outside the
workplace except as required by law. (8 CCR 5193(h))

Upon request by an employee, or a designated representative with the employee’s written consent,
the Superintendent or designee shall provide access to a record in a reasonable time, place and
manner, no later than 15 days after the request is made. (8 CCR 3204(e))

Records shall be maintained as follows: (8 CCR 3204(d), 5193(h))

1. Medical records shall be maintained for the duration of employment plus 30 years.

2. Training records shall be maintained for three years from the date of training.

3. The sharps injury log shall be maintained five years from the date the exposure incident occurred.
4. Exposure records shall be maintained for at least 30 years.

5. Each analysis using medical or exposure records shall be maintained for at least 30 years.

Regulation HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: August 21, 2007 Anderson
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Happy Valley Union ESD

Administrative Regulation

AR 4119.43
Personnel

Universal Precautions

Definitions

Universal precautions are an approach to infection control. All human blood and certain human body
fluids, including but not limited to semen, vaginal secretions and any body fluid that is visibly
contaminated with blood, are treated as if known to be infectious for human immunodeficiency virus
(HIV), hepatitis B virus (HBV), hepatitis C virus (HCV) and other bloodborne pathogens. (8 CCR
5193(b))

Personal protective equipment includes specialized clothing or equipment worn or used for
protection against a hazard. General work clothes such as uniforms, pants, shirts or blouses not
intended to function as protection against a hazard are not considered to be personal protective
equipment. (8 CCR 5193(b))

A sharp is any object that can be reasonably anticipated to penetrate the skin or any other part of the
body and to result in an exposure incident. (8 CCR 5193(b))

Engineered sharps injury protection is a physical attribute built into a needle device or into a non-
needle sharp which effectively reduces the risk of an exposure incident. (8 CCR 5193(b))

Employee Information

The Superintendent or designee shall distribute to employees information provided by the California
Department of Education regarding acquired immune deficiency syndrome (AIDS), AIDS-related
conditions, and hepatitis B. This information shall include, but not be limited to, any appropriate
methods employees may use to prevent exposure to AIDS and hepatitis B, including information
concerning the availability of a vaccine to prevent contraction of hepatitis B, and that the cost of this
vaccination may be covered by the health plan benefits of the employees. Information shall be
distributed at least annually, or more frequently if there is new information supplied by the
California Department of Education. (Health and Safety Code 120875, 120880)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens)

Infection Control Practices
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the worksite is effectively maintained in a clean

and sanitary condition, and shall implement an appropriate written schedule for cleaning and
decontamination of the worksite. (8 CCR 5193(d))
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Where occupational exposure remains after the institution of engineering and work practice controls,
the Superintendent or designee shall provide appropriate personal protective equipment at no cost to
the employee. Such equipment may include gloves, gowns, masks, eye protection, and other devices
that do not permit blood or other potentially infectious materials to pass through or reach the
employee's clothes, skin, eyes, mouth or other mucous membranes under normal conditions of use.
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain, repair, make accessible and require employees to use
and properly handle protective equipment. (8 CCR 5193(d))

The Superintendent or designee shall provide handwashing facilities which are readily accessible to

employees. When provision of handwashing facilities is not feasible, the Superintendent or designee
shall provide an appropriate antiseptic hand cleanser in conjunction with clean cloth or paper towels,
or antiseptic towelettes. (8 CCR 5193(d))

For the prevention of infectious disease, employees shall routinely: (8 CCR 5193(d))

1. Perform all procedures involving blood or other potentially infectious materials in such a manner
as to minimize splashing, spraying, spattering, and generating droplets of these substances.

2. Use personal protective equipment as appropriate.

a. Appropriate clothing, including but not limited to, gowns, aprons, lab coats, clinic jackets or

.JE
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
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.
.
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.

similar outer garments, shall be worn in occupational exposure situations. !
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

If a garment becomes penetrated by blood or other potentially infectious materials, the employee
shall remove the garment immediately or as soon as feasible. All personal protective equipment
shall be removed prior to leaving the work area. When removed, it shall be placed in an
appropriately designated area or container for storage, washing, decontamination or disposal.

b. Gloves shall be worn when it can be reasonably anticipated that the employee may have hand
contact with blood, other potentially infectious materials, mucous membranes and nonintact skin,
and when handling or touching contaminated items or surfaces.

Disposable gloves shall be replaced as soon as practical when contaminated, or as soon as feasible if
they are torn, punctured, or when their ability to function as a barrier is compromised. They shall not
be washed or decontaminated for reuse. Utility gloves may be decontaminated for reuse if the
integrity of the gloves is not compromised, but must be discarded if they are cracked, peeling, torn,
punctured, or exhibit other signs of deterioration or when their ability to function as a barrier is
compromised.

c. Masks in combination with eye protection devices or face shields shall be worn whenever
splashes, spray, spatter, or droplets of blood or other potentially infectious materials may be
generated and eye, nose or mouth contamination can be reasonably anticipated.

3. Wash hands and other skin surfaces thoroughly with soap and running water:

a. Immediately or as soon as feasible following contact of hands or any other skin or mucous
membranes with blood or other potentially infectious materials

b. Immediately after removing gloves or other personal protective equipment
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When handwashing facilities are not available, the employee shall use antiseptic hand cleanser in
conjunction with clean cloth or paper towels, or antiseptic towelettes. In such instances, hands shall
be washed with soap and running water as soon as feasible.

4. Refrain from eating, drinking, smoking, applying cosmetics or lip balm, or handling contact
lenses in work areas with a reasonable likelihood of occupational exposure.

5. Clean and decontaminate all equipment and environmental and work surfaces after contact with
blood or other potentially infectious material, no later than the end of the shift or more frequently as
required by state regulations.

6. Rather than using the hands directly, use mechanical means such as a brush and dust pan, tongs
or forceps to clean up broken glassware which may be contaminated.

7. Use effective patient-handling techniques and other methods designed to minimize the risk of a
sharps injury in all procedures involving the use of sharps in patient care.

(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions)
(cf. 5141.24 - Specialized Health Care Services)

.JE
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a. Needleless systems shall be used to administer medication or fluids, withdraw body fluids after !
initial venous or arterial access is established, and conduct any other procedure involving the .
potential for an exposure incident for which a needleless system is available as an alternative to the !
use of needle devices. .
.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

If needleless systems are not used, needles or non-needle sharps with engineered sharps injury
protection shall be used.

b. Contaminated needles or other sharps shall not be broken, bent, recapped, removed from devices,
or stored or processed in a manner that requires employees to reach by hand into the containers
where these sharps have been placed.

c. Disposable sharps shall not be reused.

8. Handle, store, treat and dispose of regulated waste in accordance with Health and Safety Code
117600-118360 and other applicable state and federal regulations.

a. Immediately or as soon as possible after use, contaminated sharps shall be placed in containers
meeting the requirements of 8 CCR 5193(d)(3)(D). Containers shall be easily accessible, maintained
upright throughout use where feasible, and replaced as necessary to avoid overfilling.

b. Specimens of blood or other potentially infectious material shall be placed in a container which
prevents leakage during collection, handling, processing, storage, transport or shipping.

(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety)

(cf. 5141 — Health Care and Emergencies)

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5141.6 - Student Health and Social Services)

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

Regulation HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT

approved: August 21, 2007 Anderson, California
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Happy Valley Union ESD

Administrative Regulation

AR 51414
Students

Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting

Definitions

Child abuse or neglect includes the following: (Penal Code 11165.5, 11165.6)

1. A physical injury inflicted by other than accidental means on a child by another person
2. Sexual abuse of a child as defined in Penal Code 11165.1

3. Neglect as defined in Penal Code 11165.2

4. Willful harming or injuring of a child or the endangering of the person or health of a child as
defined in Penal Code 11165.3

5. Unlawful corporal punishment or injury as defined in Penal Code 11165.4
Child abuse or neglect does not include:
1. A mutual affray between minors (Penal Code 11165.6)

2. An injury caused by reasonable and necessary force used by a peace officer acting within the
course and scope of his/her employment (Penal Code 11165.6)

(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

3. An injury resulting from the exercise by a teacher, vice principal, principal, or other certificated
employee of the same degree of physical control over a student that a parent/guardian would be
privileged to exercise, not exceeding the amount of physical control reasonably necessary to
maintain order, protect property, protect the health and safety of students, or maintain proper and
appropriate conditions conducive to learning (Education Code 44807)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

4. Aninjury caused by a school employee's use of force that is reasonable and necessary to quell a
disturbance threatening physical injury to persons or damage to property, to protect himself/herself,
or to obtain weapons or other dangerous objects within the control of the student (Education Code
49001)

5. Physical pain or discomfort caused by athletic competition or other such recreational activity
voluntarily engaged in by the student (Education Code 49001)
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Mandated reporters include, but are not limited to, teachers; instructional aides; teacher's aides or
assistants; classified employees; certificated pupil personnel employees; administrative officers or
supervisors of child attendance; administrators and employees of a licensed day care facility; Head
Start teachers; district police or security officers; and administrators, presenters, or counselors of a
child abuse prevention program. (Penal Code 11165.7)

Reasonable suspicion means that it is objectively reasonable for a person to entertain a suspicion,
based upon facts that could cause a reasonable person in a like position, drawing when appropriate
on his/her training and experience, to suspect child abuse or neglect. (Penal Code 11166)

Reportable Offenses

A mandated reporter shall make a report using the procedures provided below whenever, in his/her
professional capacity or within the scope of his/her employment, he/she has knowledge of or
observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of
child abuse or neglect. (Penal Code 11166)

Any mandated reporter who has knowledge of or who reasonably suspects that a child is suffering
serious emotional damage or is at a substantial risk of suffering serious emotional damage, based on
evidence of severe anxiety, depression, withdrawal, or untoward aggressive behavior toward self or
others, may make a report to the appropriate agency. (Penal Code 11166.05)

commission of a murder, rape, or lewd or lascivious act by use of force, violence, duress, menace, or
fear of immediate and unlawful bodily injury, where the victim is a child under age 14. (Penal Code
152.3, 288)

Responsibility for Reporting

The reporting duties of mandated reporters are individual and cannot be delegated to another person.
(Penal Code 11166)

When two or more mandated reporters jointly have knowledge of a known or suspected instance of
child abuse or neglect, the report may be made by a member of the team selected by mutual
agreement and a single report may be made and signed by the selected member of the reporting
team. Any member who has knowledge that the member designated to report has failed to do so
shall thereafter make the report. (Penal Code 11166)

No supervisor or administrator shall impede or inhibit a mandated reporter from making a report.
(Penal Code 11166)

Any person not identified as a mandated reporter who has knowledge of or observes a child whom
he/she knows or reasonably suspects has been a victim of child abuse or neglect may report the
known or suspected instance of child abuse or neglect to the appropriate agency. (Penal Code
11166)

Reporting Procedures
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Any person shall notify a peace officer if he/she reasonably believes that he/she has observed the i
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1. Initial Telephone Report I
I
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Immediately or as soon as practicably possible after knowing or observing suspected child abuse or
neglect, a mandated reporter shall make an initial report by telephone to any police department
(excluding a school district police/security department), sheriff's department, county probation
department if designated by the county to receive such reports, or county welfare department. (Penal
Code 11166)

Child Protective Services
1620 Market Street
Redding, CA 96001
(530) 225-5791

When the initial telephone report is made, the mandated reporter shall note the name of the official
contacted, the date and time contacted, and any instructions or advice received.

2. Written Report

Within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident, the mandated reporter shall
then prepare, and either send, fax, or electronically submit to the appropriate agency, a written
follow-up report, which includes a completed Department of Justice form (SS 8572). (Penal Code
11166, 11168)

Mandated reporters may obtain copies of the Department of Justice form from either the district or
the appropriate agency.

Reports of suspected child abuse or neglect shall include, if known: (Penal Code 11167)

a. The name, business address, and telephone number of the person making the report and the
capacity that makes the person a mandated reporter

b. The child's name and address, present location and, where applicable, school, grade, and class

c. The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the child's parents/guardians

d. The information that gave rise to the reasonable suspicion of child abuse or neglect and the
source(s) of that information

e. The name, address, telephone number, and other relevant personal information about the
person(s) who might have abused or neglected the child

The mandated reporter shall make a report even if some of this information is not known or is
uncertain to him/her. (Penal Code 11167)

Information relevant to the incident of child abuse or neglect may also be given to an investigator
from an agency that is investigating the case. (Penal Code 11167)

3. Internal Reporting

Employees reporting child abuse or neglect to an appropriate agency are encouraged, but not
required, to notify the principal or designee as soon as possible after the initial telephone report to
the appropriate agency. When so notified, the principal shall inform the Superintendent or designee.
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The principal or designee so notified shall provide the mandated reporter with any assistance
necessary to ensure that reporting procedures are carried out in accordance with law, Board policy,
and administrative regulation. At the mandated reporter's request, the principal may assist in
completing and filing the necessary forms.

The mandated reporter shall not be required to disclose his/her identity to the principal. (Penal Code
11166)

He/she may provide or mail a copy of the written report to the principal or Superintendent or
designee without his/her signature or name.

Reporting the information to an employer, supervisor, principal, school counselor, co-worker, or
other person shall not be a substitute for making a mandated report to the appropriate agency. (Penal
Code 11166)

Training

Training of mandated reporters shall include child abuse identification and reporting. (Penal Code
11165.7)

Training shall also include guidance in the appropriate discipline of students, physical contact with
students, and maintenance of ethical relationships with students to avoid actions that may be
misinterpreted as child abuse.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

Victim Interviews

Whenever a representative of a government agency investigating suspected child abuse or neglect
deems it necessary, a suspected victim may be interviewed during school hours, on school premises,
concerning a report of suspected child abuse or neglect that occurred within the child's home or out-
of-home care facility. The child shall be given the choice of being interviewed in private or in the
presence of any adult school employee or volunteer aide selected by the child. (Penal Code
11174.3)

A staff member or volunteer aide selected by a child may decline to be present at the interview. If
the selected person accepts, the principal or designee shall inform him/her of the following
requirements: (Penal Code 11174.3)

1. The purpose of the selected person's presence at the interview is to lend support to the child and
enable him/her to be as comfortable as possible.

2. The selected person shall not participate in the interview.

3. The selected person shall not discuss the facts or circumstances of the case with the child.
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4. The selected person is subject to the confidentiality requirements of the Child Abuse and Neglect
Reporting Act, a violation of which is punishable as specified in Penal Code 11167.5.

If a staff member agrees to be present, the interview shall be held at a time during school hours when
it does not involve an expense to the school. (Penal Code 11174.3)

Release of Child to Peace Officer

When a child is released to a peace officer and taken into custody as a victim of suspected child
abuse or neglect, the Superintendent or designee and/or principal shall not notify the
parent/guardian, but rather shall provide the peace officer with the address and telephone number of
the child's parent/guardian. It is the responsibility of the peace officer or agent to notify the
parent/guardian of the situation. (Education Code 48906)

Peace officers shall be asked to sign an appropriate release or acceptance of responsibility form.

(cf. 5145.11 - Questioning and Apprehension)

Parent/Guardian Complaints

Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall provide parents/guardians with procedures that
describe how to report suspected child abuse occurring at a school site to appropriate agencies. For
parents/guardians whose primary language is other than English, such procedures shall be in their
primary language and, when communicating orally regarding those procedures, an interpreter shall
be provided.

To file a complaint against a district employee or other person suspected of child abuse or neglect at
a school site, parents/guardians may file a report by telephone, in person, or in writing with any
appropriate agency identified above under "Reporting Procedures.” If a parent/guardian makes a
complaint to any district employee, that employee shall notify the parent/guardian of procedures for
filing a complaint with the appropriate agency. The employee also is obligated pursuant to Penal
Code 11166 to file a report himself/herself using the procedures described above for mandated
reporters.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)

In addition, if the child is enrolled in special education, a separate complaint may be filed with the
California Department of Education pursuant to 5 CCR 4650.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Notifications

The Superintendent or designee shall provide all new employees who are mandated reporters a
statement that informs them of their status as mandated reporters, informs them of their reporting
obligations under Penal Code 11166, and of their confidentiality rights under Penal Code 11167.
The district shall also provide these new employees with a copy of Penal Code 11165.7, 11166, and
11167. (Penal Code 11165.7, 11166.5)
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Before beginning employment, employees shall sign the statement indicating that they have
knowledge of the reporting obligations under Penal Code 11166 and that they will comply with
those provisions. The signed statements shall be retained by the Superintendent or designee. (Penal
Code 11166.5)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

Employees who work with dependent adults shall be notified of legal responsibilities and reporting
procedures pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 15630-15637.

The Superintendent or designee shall also notify all employees that:

1. A mandated reporter who reports a known or suspected instance of child abuse or neglect shall
not be held civilly or criminally liable for making a report and this immunity shall apply even if the
mandated reporter acquired the knowledge or reasonable suspicion of child abuse or neglect outside
of his/her professional capacity or outside the scope of his/her employment. Any other person
making a report shall not incur civil or criminal liability unless it can be proven that he/she
knowingly made a false report or made a report with reckless disregard of the truth or falsity of the
report. (Penal Code 11172)

2. If a mandated reporter fails to report an incident of known or reasonably suspected child abuse or
neglect, he/she may be guilty of a crime punishable by a fine and/or imprisonment. (Penal Code
11166)

3. No employee shall be subject to any sanction by the district for making a report. (Penal Code
11166)

Regulation HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: August 21, 2007 Anderson, California
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Happy Valley Union ESD

Administrative Regulation

AR 5145.7
Students

Sexual Harassment

Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, unwanted
requests for sexual favors or other unwanted verbal, visual or physical conduct of a sexual nature
made against another person of the same or opposite gender, in the educational setting, when:

(Education Code 212.5; 5 CCR 4916)

1. Submission to the conduct is explicitly or implicitly made a term or condition of a student's
academic status or progress

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by a student is used as the basis for academic decisions
affecting the student

3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact on the student's academic
performance, or of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational environment

4. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the student is used as the basis for any decision
affecting the student regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or activities available at or
through any district program or activity

Types of conduct which are prohibited in the district and which may constitute sexual harassment
include, but are not limited to:

1. Unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations or propositions

2. Sexual slurs, epithets, threats, verbal abuse, derogatory comments or sexually degrading
descriptions

3. Graphic verbal comments about an individual's body, or overly personal conversation

4. Sexual jokes, notes, stories, drawings, pictures or gestures

5. Spreading sexual rumors

6. Teasing or sexual remarks about students enrolled in a predominantly single-gender class
7. Massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking or brushing the body

8. Touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way

9. Purposefully cornering or blocking normal movements
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10. Displaying sexually suggestive objects

Notifications

A copy of the district's sexual harassment policy and regulation shall:

1. Beincluded in the notifications that are sent to parents/guardians at the beginning of each school
year (Education Code 48980; 5 CCR 4917)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
2. Be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building or other area where
notices of district rules, regulations, procedures and standards of conduct are posted (Education

Code 231.5)

3. Be provided as part of any orientation program conducted for new students at the beginning of
each quarter, semester or summer session (Education Code 231.5)

4. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school's or district's comprehensive
rules, regulations, procedures and standards of conduct (Education Code 231.5)

5. Be provided to employees and employee organizations
Investigation of Complaints at School (Site-Level Grievance Procedure)

1. The principal or designee shall promptly investigate all complaints of sexual harassment. In so
doing, he/she shall talk individually with:

a. The student who is complaining

b. The person accused of harassment

c. Anyone who witnessed the conduct complained of
d. Anyone mentioned as having related information

2. The student who is complaining shall have an opportunity to describe the incident, present
witnesses and other evidence of the harassment, and put his/her complaint in writing.

3. The principal or designee shall discuss the complaint only with the people described above.
When necessary to carry out his/her investigation or for other good reasons that apply to the
particular situation, the principal or designee also may discuss the complaint with the following
persons:

a. The Superintendent or designee

b. The parent/guardian of the student who complained

c. If the alleged harasser is a student, his/her parent/guardian
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d. A teacher or staff member whose knowledge of the students involved may help in determining
who is telling the truth

e. Child protective agencies responsible for investigating child abuse reports

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)

f. Legal counsel for the district

4. When the student who complained and the alleged harasser so agree, the principal or designee
may arrange for them to resolve the complaint informally with the help of a counselor, teacher,
administrator or trained mediator. The student who complained shall never be asked to work out the
problem directly with the accused person unless such help is provided and both parties agree.

5. In reaching a decision about the complaint, the principal or designee may take into account:

a. Statements made by the persons identified above

b. The details and consistency of each person's account

c. Evidence of how the complaining student reacted to the incident

e. Evidence of any past harassment complaints that were found to be untrue

6. To judge the severity of the harassment, the principal or designee may take into consideration:
. How the misconduct affected one or more students' education

b. The type, frequency and duration of the misconduct

c. The number of persons involved

d. The age and gender of the person accused of harassment

e. The subject(s) of harassment

f. The place and situation where the incident occurred

g. Other incidents at the school, including incidents of harassment that were not related to gender

7. The principal or designee shall write a report of his/her findings, decision, and reasons for the
decision and shall present this report to the student who complained and the person accused.

8. The principal or designee shall give the Superintendent or designee a written report of the
complaint and investigation. If the principal or designee verifies that sexual harassment occurred,
this report shall describe the actions taken to end the harassment, address the effects of the
harassment on the student harassed, and prevent retaliation or further harassment.
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9. Within two weeks after receiving the complaint, the principal or designee shall determine

whether or not the student who complained has been further harassed. The principal or designee

shall keep a record of this information and shall continue this follow-up.

Enforcement

The Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce the district's sexual
harassment policy. As needed, these actions may include any of the following:

1. Removing vulgar or offending graffiti.

2. Providing staff inservice and student instruction or counseling.

3. Notifying parents/guardians of the actions taken.

4. Notifying child protective services.

5. Taking appropriate disciplinary action. In addition, the principal or designee may take

disciplinary measures against any person who is found to have made a complaint of sexual
harassment which he/she knew was not true.

Regulation HAPPY VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: August 21, 2007 Anderson, California
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